
 Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 1 

SURREY POLICE BOARD
    Regular Meeting Agenda

Venue:  Virtual 
Date:      November 30, 2022 
Time:      4:00 PM 

ITEM PRESENTER 

A. CALL TO ORDER

The Surrey Police Board recognizes that our work takes place on the ancestral, 
traditional, and unceded territories of the Coast Salish Peoples. 

POLICE OATH/SOLEMN AFFIRMATION OF BOARD CHAIR – S. 70 POLICE ACT – 
TAKING OF AN OATH 

Brenda Locke sworn in as Chair, Surrey Police Board on November 24, 2022. 

Chair Locke 

B. ADOPTIONS

1. Adoption of the Agenda  – November 30, 2022

2. Adoption of Minutes – October 26, 2022

Chair Locke 

Chair Locke 

C. DELEGATIONS

1. Wayne Rideout, ADM and Jamie Lipp, Executive Director,
Indigenous, Core Policing and Contract Management Division –
Update on Transition

Chair Locke 

D. REPORTS

Priority Information

1. Letter from City of Surrey to the Surrey Police Board
Re:  November 14, 2022, Council Resolution re:  SPS Expenditures

CHIEF CONSTABLE REPORTS 

1. Hiring and Diversity Update
Report 2022-R027 - For Information

2. SPS Community Policing Vision
Report 2022-R028 – For Information

3. Community Engagement
Report 2022-R029 – For Information

4. Chief Updates – Verbal - For Information
(Presentation)

Chair Locke 

Chief Lipinski 

Chief Lipinski 

Chief Lipinski 

Chief Lipinski 

Page 1 of 31



Surrey Police Board – Regular Agenda 

 Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 2 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

1. Financial Update - Year to Date Expenditures (October 31, 2022)
Report 2022-FIN015 - For Information
(Presentation)

Avtar Johl 

E. INFORMATION

1. Thank you from Ellendale Elementary – Remembrance Day Assembly –
November 9, 2022

2. 2023 BCAPB Conference – Save the Date – May 25 & 26, 2023
– Nelson, BC

3. Letter from ADM Rideout – Board Training – Watson Advisors –
November 18, 2022

Melissa Granum 

Melissa Granum 

Melissa Granum 

F. CORRESPONDENCE

No correspondence. Chair Locke 

G. NEW BUSINESS

No new business. Chair Locke 

H. NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Surrey Police Board to be determined. Chair Locke 

I. MOTION TO HOLD A MEETING IN A CLOSED SESSION

It is in order for the Board to pass a motion to close the meeting to the public 
pursuant to Section 69 (2) (c), and (d) of the Police Act, which states: 

(2) if it believes that any of the following matters will arise in a meeting or
hearing held by it, a board or committee may order that the portion of the
meeting during which the matter will arise be held in private:

(c) a matter concerning labour contract discussions, labour
management relations, layoffs or another personnel matter;

(d) a matter concerning information that a person has requested he or
she be allowed to give in private to the board or committee.

Chair Locke 

J. ADJOURNMENT Chair Locke 

Page 2 of 31



Page 3 of 31



 Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 1 

SURREY POLICE BOARD
  Regular Meeting Minutes

Venue:  Virtual 
Date:      October 26, 2022 
Time:      4:00 PM 

Present: 
Jessie Sunner 
Meena Brisard 
James Carwana 
Harley Chappell 
Cheney Cloke 
Manav Gill 
Avtar Johl 
Elizabeth Model 

Regrets: 
Doug McCallum, Chair 

Guests: 
Ninon Daubigen 
Chief Mike Serr 
Cst. Jeremy Pearce 

Staff Present: 
Norm Lipinski, Chief Constable 
Jennifer Hyland, Deputy Chief 
Michael LeSage, Deputy Chief 
Todd Matsumoto, Deputy Chief 
Kyle Friesen, General Counsel 
Donna Smith, SPB Legal Counsel 
Melissa Granum, Executive Director 
Marion Chow, Executive Assistant 
Forouzan Rezazadeh, IT Senior Project Mgr. 
Gayle Wlasiuk, Executive Service Manager 
Lisa Eason, Strategic Communications Mgr. 
Sukh Sidhu, S. Sgt. 
Nathan Wong, Senior Manager, Finance 
Nicola Webb, HR Consultant 
Angela Christensen, Senior Manager, HR 
Andrew Whitson, Communications Specialist 

The Surrey Police Board recognizes that our work takes place on the ancestral, traditional, and unceded 
territories of the Coast Salish Peoples. 

A. CALL TO ORDER

The October 26, 2022 Regular Board meeting was called to order at 4:00 PM. 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 

A Moment of Silence was held to honour of Cst. Shaelyn Yang. 

MOTION TO APPOINT AN ACTING CHAIR 

It is in order for the Board to pass a motion to appoint an “Acting Chair” pursuant to Section 25 (2) of the Police Act, 
which states:  

(2) If the mayor is absent or unable to act, the municipal police board members present at a meeting of the
municipal police board must elect from among themselves a chair to preside at the meeting.

It was Moved by Meena Brisard 
Seconded by Harley Chappell 

Page 4 of 31



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes 

 Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 2 

That Director Cloke be appointed Acting Chair for the Surrey 
Police Board meeting of October 26, 2022. 

Carried. 

B. ADOPTIONS

1. Adoption of the Agenda  – October 26, 2022.

It was Moved by Meena Brisard 
Seconded by Jessie Sunner 

That the agenda of the Surrey Police Board meeting of 
October 26, 2022 be adopted. 

Carried. 

2. Adoption of Minutes –September 21, 2022

It was Moved by Elizabeth Model 
Seconded by Harley Chappell 

That the minutes of the Surrey Police Board meeting of 
September 21, 2022 be adopted. 

Carried. 

Director Cloke presented opening remarks on the progress of SPS and the commitment of the Surrey Police 
Board to the citizens of the City of Surrey in supporting SPS to becoming police of jurisdiction. 

C. DELEGATIONS

1. Cops for Cancer – Canadian Cancer Society

Abbotsford Chief Constable Mike Serr, Co-Chair of the Cops for Cancer Steering Committee, Ninon
Daubigen, Senior Manager, Cops for Cancer and Cst. Jeremey Pearce. Co-Captain provided the Surrey
Police Board with a presentation on the work of the Cops for Cancer Society and thanked Surrey Police
Service for recognizing their impact and for their support.

The Board thanked the delegation for the presentation and acknowledged the amazing work being
done by the Cops for Cancer Society.

D. REPORTS

CHIEF CONSTABLE REPORTS

1. 2022 Q3 Community Engagement
Report 2022-R025 – For Information

The Board received the report for information.

Page 5 of 31



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes 

 Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 3 

2. 2022 Strategic Plan - Q3 Update
Report 2022-R026 - For Information

The Board received the report for information.

3. Chief Updates – Verbal - -For Information
(Presentation)

The Board received the report for information.

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

1. Financial Update - Year to Date Expenditures (September, 2022)
Report 2022-FIN012 - For Information
(Presentation)

The Board received the report for information.

E. INFORMATION

No information.

F. CORRESPONDENCE

1. Letter from ADM Rideout – Request for Law Enforcement Policies and Procedures Related to Civil
Disobedience – October 19, 2022.

2. CACP and CAPG – Joint Statement - Police Leaders Offer Condolences and Call For Support After Tragic
Murder of Fifth Canadian Officer.

Correspondence received by the Board. 

G. NEW BUSINESS

No new business.

Due to technical difficulties earlier in the meeting, Director Cloke repeated the opening remarks.

H. NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Surrey Police Board will be held on November 30, 2022.

I. MOTION TO HOLD A MEETING IN A CLOSED SESSION

It is in order for the Board to pass a motion to close the meeting to the public pursuant to Section 69 (2) (c),
and (d) of the Police Act, which states:

It was  Moved by Meena Brisard

Page 6 of 31



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes  

 

                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 4 

 Seconded by Harley Chappell 
 
 That the Board close the meeting to the public pursuant to 

Section 69 (2) (c) and (d) of the Police Act, which states:  
 
(2) if it believes that any of the following matters will arise in a meeting or hearing held by it, a board or 

committee may order that the portion of the meeting during which the matter will arise be held in 
private: 

 
(c) a matter concerning labour contract discussions, labour management relations, layoffs or 

another personnel matter; 
(d) a matter concerning information that a person has requested he or she be allowed to give in 

private to the board or committee. 
 

 Carried.  
 

J.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 The Surrey Police Board October 26, 2022 regular meeting adjourned at 5:12 PM. 

 
Certified correct: 
 
 
 _________________________________________   ___________________________________   
  Marion Chow, Executive Assistant    Cheney Cloke, Vice Chair 
 

Page 7 of 31



Page 8 of 31



Page 9 of 31



Page 10 of 31



REGULAR 
REPORT DATE: November 24, 2022 

BOARD MEETING DATE: November 30, 2022 

BOARD REPORT # 2022-R027 

TO: Surrey Police Board 

FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 

SUBJECT: Hiring and Diversity Update 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information. 

BACKGROUND 

SPS continues to attract and hire high quality applicants with diverse backgrounds, skills, and qualifications 
with a focus on recruiting police officers who are representative of the communities we serve.  As of 
November 15, 2022, SPS has hired 374 employees, comprised of 315 sworn and 59 civilian staff. Work 
continues to recruit sworn officers to fulfill the Joint SPS-HR Strategy and Plan as directed by the Province, 
and to build out the organizational structure of SPS with skilled professional civilian employees.  

DISCUSSION 

Experienced officers have come from 26 different police agencies across the country, providing SPS with a 
broad spectrum of perspectives and experience.  To date, 109 officers have been hired with RCMP 
backgrounds, and 178 have come from municipal or other police departments.  28 new recruits have also 
been hired.  

Experienced Officer Hiring and Deployment 

Progress and momentum of hiring and deployment has been excellent and is in line with the joint SPS-RCMP 
HR Strategy and Plan. 33 additional SPS members completed their RCMP orientation and were deployed into 
the Municipal Police Unit to work alongside the RCMP on November 28.  This group brought our total 
number of officers deployed to 187.  

SPS officers that have not been deployed are assigned to critical infrastructure roles, working to build the 
necessary systems and supports for the department, such as: HR, IT, Recruiting, Training, Professional 
Standards, Policy Development, and Planning. Civilian employees perform important administrative and 
management functions, such as: Finance, Facilities Management, Communications, Executive Services, and 
Legal Services.  

Page 11 of 31



2 
 
Cadet Hiring and Recruiting 
  
Recruit Class 1 
 

• 14 Recruits are currently in week 15 of Block II – Practical Training, with a certified Field Training 
Officer (FTO), deployed in Frontline Policing and taking calls for service. 

• Recruits will be returning to the JIBC on January 9th, 2023, for Block III of the JIBC Police Recruit Training 
Program 

Recruit Class 2 
 

• 14 recruits are in week 11 of Block 1 
• All recruits passed the BC Provincial Policing Standards for firearms. 
• Recruits finish Block 1 on December 16th, 2022 
• Between December 19th – January 6th, 2023, the recruits will undergo SPS training, including a 2-

week patrol tactics course. 
• Deployment into frontline policing with their FTOs is anticipated to begin January 13th, 2023. 

Diversity Statistics 
 
The SPS Recruiting Unit strives to ensure that the composition of SPS reflects the diversity that exists in the 
city of Surrey. A diverse workforce will help SPS to engage with citizens and ensure that SPS hears and 
understands their concerns, perspectives and needs. SPS also believes it is important for the public and 
potential applicants to know about the organization and people that have chosen to work at SPS. 
 
The current composition of SPS sworn officers includes: 
 

• 19% female 
• 50% culturally diverse backgrounds, including: 

o 6% Indigenous 
o 21% South Asian 

• 36 languages spoken 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
The above matters are provided for the Board's awareness and information. Regular updates will be 
provided to the Board.  

 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 

Page 12 of 31



REGULAR 
REPORT DATE: November 23, 2022 

BOARD MEETING DATE: November 30, 2022 

BOARD REPORT # 2022-R028 

TO: Surrey Police Board 

FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 

SUBJECT: SPS Community Policing Vision 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information. 

BACKGROUND 

In 2018, the City of Surrey decided to move from the RCMP to its own municipal police service. The Province 
of BC approved this change and appointed a civilian Surrey Police Board, and Surrey Police Service (SPS) was 
officially established. The choice to have a municipal police agency is about increased accountability and 
responsiveness. The benefits of municipal policing are significant, including sensitivity to local issues, 
consistent staffing, transparency, civilian oversight and local control. Community specific training and 
policies are also significant benefits to a community-based model. 

An extraordinary amount of work has gone into establishing SPS to date. This report summarizes the 
activities that support the operationalization of our vision. 

DISCUSSION 

COMMUNITY POLICING PHILOSOPHY 

Community policing is a philosophy that promotes organizational strategies that support the systematic use 
of partnerships and problem-solving techniques to proactively address the immediate conditions that give 
rise to public safety issues such as crime, social disorder, and fear of crime1. 

Surrey Police Service was established with the vision of being a progressive, community-based police service 
that is accountable to the community. A police service for Surrey, by Surrey, where priorities and solutions 
are developed locally. Ongoing and consistent engagement with our communities is essential to providing an 
effective, compassionate police service. Engaging citizens and important stakeholder groups provides the 
community with opportunities to contribute their input and foster greater understanding, leading to 
increased public trust and confidence. 

1 Community Policing Defined (publicsafety.gc.ca) 

Page 13 of 31

https://www.publicsafety.gc.ca/lbrr/archives/cnmcs-plcng/cn32080-eng.pdf


2 
 
 
SPS VISION AND VALUES 
 
Our Vision: 
 
The Surrey Police Service is a progressive, community-based police service that values diversity, 
partnerships, and accountability as it works to enhance public safety and community well-being.  

Our Values: 
 
Honour 
We serve our community with pride and can be depended on to uphold the public’s trust in everything we 
do. 
Integrity 
We are honest, ethical, and accountable, committed to doing what is right and to guarding the rights and 
security of others. 
Respect 
We recognize each person’s inherent dignity and worth, and work to build strong, healthy, collaborative 
relationships within our community and team. 
Courage 
We respond to the moral and physical challenges of policing with purpose and determination persevering in 
the face of adversity and fear. 
Compassion 
We work to listen, understand and help, responding to the suffering of others with empathy, humility, and 
concern. 
Inclusiveness 
We welcome and celebrate diverse peoples, cultures and ideas, knowing that—together—we can achieve 
more. 
 
Our Motto: 
 
Safer. Stronger. Together. 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
From June to October 2021, Surrey Police Service (SPS) undertook a three-part community consultation 
project to provide the foundation for the development of a community policing model and to inform SPS’s 
first strategic plan. This project consisted of a survey, interviews and focus groups, with the goal of gathering 
information from a broad range of stakeholders who live and work in Surrey. The three components were 
designed by independent research experts to help SPS understand the lived experience of different groups, 
the challenges and opportunities currently facing Surrey, and how to improve service delivery and increase 
safety and the quality of life for all residents in the community. 
 
The community engagement activities strongly point to support for a community policing model that draws 
on the vast expertise and experience among community members in order to create integrated, holistic, 
innovative responses to the challenges facing the community. There is also strong support for the 
development of a Community Safety and Wellbeing Plan that would provide a framework for multi-sector 
collaboration in addressing the current and future needs of the community. Citizens suggested that SPS 
should consider equipping its officers with body-worn cameras, develop strategies for at-risk youth, a School 
Resource Officer program and Neighbourhood Partnership Officers attached to police offices in the town 
centers. Residents also called for a meaningful SPS Diversity Advisory Committee, deployment of a Gang 
Crime Unit, SPS Diversity Relations Unit and other specialized liaison units. 

Page 14 of 31



3 

The engagement activities provided fourteen recommendations2 for action which can be summarized in four 
key themes: diversity, community, skills and competencies, and communication. These themes are 
addressed throughout the Strategic Plan. SPS continues to develop our ongoing plans for citizen 
engagement, the views of which will be reflected in SPS’ future Strategic Plans.  

STRATEGIC PLAN 

The development of the Strategic Plan3 is an exciting opportunity for the Chief Constable and Police Board to 
work with Surrey’s citizens to set the strategic vision of the SPS.  In consultation with the community and 
other stakeholders, the Plan becomes a foundational road map for the establishment and operationalization 
of the SPS. 

The data collected from the community engagement series has informed the foundation for the SPS 
Strategic Plan and the operating model as SPS begins to provide policing service in Surrey.  The Plan takes 
into consideration the priorities, goals and objectives of the provincial and local governments. Three high 
level priorities were determined through the strategic planning process. These priorities are broken down 
into strategies and actions to operationalize the plan. Finally, anticipated outcomes and ways to measure 
and report on our progress are articulated. The activities and outcomes expressed set out our direction and 
commitments to our community and employees, and position SPS for success as we continue to build a local, 
modern police service for Surrey.  

Priority 1: Organizational Development and Operational Readiness 
Our first priority focuses on building the internal structures of the organization, ensuring that procedures 
and practices are in place to hire and support quality employees, the development of the three Bureaus, and 
ensuring that we are cognizant of, and prepared to address risks.  

Priority 2: Employee Development and Wellness 
Priority 2 focuses on the development of our employees including training, wellness and resilience programs 
to ensure that SPS employees are prepared for all aspects of their roles.  

Priority 3: Develop the SPS Community Policing Model 
Priority 3 incorporates the importance of community consultation with the development of the SPS 
Community Policing Model, including ongoing engagement activities and the development of Indigenous 
and Youth strategies targeted to supporting the needs of the communities we will serve.  

Each priority is further articulated into specific strategies and actions, and suggested methods for measuring 
and reporting our progress toward achieving our goals. Concluding the Strategic Plan is a commitment to the 
community to embody our values and ensure accountability in order to establish public trust and confidence 
in SPS.  

OUR PEOPLE 

SPS is committed to attracting and hiring high quality applicants with diverse backgrounds, skills, and 
qualifications with a focus on recruiting police officers who are representative of the communities we serve. 
The SPS Recruiting Unit strives to ensure that the composition of SPS reflects the diversity that exists in the 
city of Surrey. A diverse workforce will help SPS to engage with citizens and ensure that SPS hears and 
understands their concerns, perspectives and needs. Many SPS employees live in and are actively connected 
to the community through sports, schools, community groups and volunteer activities. These important 
connections strengthen our relationships and importantly embed our people in the communities we serve.   

2 https://surreypolice.ca/community-consultation 
3 Strategic Plan Final Version 2022-02-07.pdf (surreypolice.ca) 

Page 15 of 31

https://www.surreypolice.ca/sites/surreypolice/files/media/documents/Strategic%20Plan%20Final%20Version%202022-02-07.pdf


4 

Employee Wellness 

Employee wellness is a foundational priority, and SPS is committed to supporting the physical and emotional 
wellness of all of our employees and their families. Embedded in the Employee Support Services section is 
our Wellness Unit, which provides professional psychological support, peer support and an Operational 
Stress Injury dog to assist employees and their families and support them in managing both personal and 
professional challenges.  

CONCLUSION 

Community Policing is at the heart and foundation of SPS’ commitments to the residents of Surrey. We are a 
progressive, community-based police service that is accountable to the community. A police service for 
Surrey, by Surrey. 

 The above matters are provided for the Board's awareness and information. 

Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 

Page 16 of 31



REGULAR 
REPORT DATE: November 23, 2022 

BOARD MEETING DATE: November 30, 2022 

BOARD REPORT # 2022-R029 

TO: Surrey Police Board 

FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 

SUBJECT: Community Engagement 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information. 

BACKGROUND 

Ongoing community engagement forms part of SPS’s commitment to ensuring that interested and affected 
parties are an integral part of developing the community policing model.  Consultation has informed the SPS 
strategic planning process and will continue to influence policies and operational strategies as they are 
developed.  A high level of community involvement will help to raise the profile of SPS and build trust and 
partnerships within the community.  

DISCUSSION 

SPS officers frequently engage with the public while out on patrol, and our Community Policing Bureau staff 
conduct regular community consultation meetings to further inform the development of the Community 
Policing Model.  605 community engagement opportunities have been conducted to date in 2022.  These 
engagements take the form of proactive opportunities, invitations from community groups, and strategic 
consultations.  The Community Policing Bureau produces monthly reports to capture these activities (e.g.: 
Appendix I).  Some examples of recent engagement activities include: 

• Surrey Healthier Communities Forum, hosted by Fraser Health
• City of Surrey Healthy Communities Age Friendly Network meeting
• Community Action Table for overdose awareness
• Remembrance Day ceremonies at all three venues in the city, Cloverdale, South Surrey, and Whalley,

engaging with veterans and families to show our respect and support.
• Surrey Christmas Bureau’s Toy Warehouse
• Seniors’ Holiday Concert and Tree Lighting festival at Surrey City Hall
• Blue Eagles Cadets
• School presentations for Remembrance Day
• Kidsplay Foundation 3 on 3 basketball tournament
• Canucks Autism Network hockey tournament
• Guru Nanak Singh Food Drive
• Meal prep and food delivery for residents at Cloverdale Community Kitchen

Page 17 of 31



2 

Community members are happy to see SPS officers actively participating and contributing to good work in 
the community and have provided significant positive feedback. Members of the public frequently tell us 
that they are impressed with our level of involvement and care. By investing in durable relationships with 
communities, we can bring missing voices to the table, actively listen to, and consider their diverse and rich 
perspectives and experiences. We will strengthen trust and confidence in each other and empower 
communities’ voices in how we police. 

CONCLUSION 

Community engagement activities provide important opportunities for SPS officers and employees to 
demonstrate their commitment to the values of the organization, and strengthen connections and 
partnerships, in turn supporting the development of our Community Policing model. 

The above matters are for the Board's awareness. 

Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 

Appendix I – October 2022 Community Connections 

Page 18 of 31



SPS Community Engagements 
October 2022: 

Engagement Activity 

Strategic Consultation 
Follow Up 

2 

Invitation/Request 

4 

Proactive Engagement 
34 

Total 
40 

Appendix I

Page 19 of 31



Monthly Combined Community Connections.xlsx (sharepoint.com) 

Insp. Rodrigue and S/Sgt. Furgason 
went to Cloverdale to engage with the 
local community at the library, the 
Museum of Surrey,  Community 
kitchen, and finally had a chance 
encounter at a very serene and 
peaceful environment at the Healing 
Place where they do counselling. They 
were told that anyone can drop into 
the environment and have tea or just 
relax in a warm, safe and friendly 
environment. 

S/Sgt. Furgason, S/Sgt. Hurst and Sgt. 
Khosa participated in candle lighting to 
celebrate Diwali at various venues. 

 S/Sgt. Hurst and Sgt. Van Nieuwland 
attended South Surrey Athletic Park to 
support our Junior girls rugby and 
junior boys football.

HIGHLIGHTS 

Page 20 of 31



REGULAR REPORT DATE: November 22, 2022 

BOARD MEETING DATE: November 30, 2022 

BOARD REPORT # 2022-FIN015 

TO: Surrey Police Board DATE: November 30, 2022 

FROM: Finance Committee FILE: 60540-20-04 

SUBJECT: Financial Update – Year-To-Date Expenditures (October 31, 2022) 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Finance Committee recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the “Board”) receive this report for 
information. 

PURPOSE 

This report presents a summary of 2022 year-to-date expenditures incurred up to the period ended 
October 31, 2022. 

BACKGROUND 

The Five-Year Financial Plan 2022 – 2026 adopted by City Council in December 2021 provided the 2022 
budget allocations for policing services, which included the annual budget for SPS and the one-time policing 
transition project budget. 

The City’s 2022 – 2026 operating budgets for policing is presented in the following table (in thousands): 

For 2022, $72.53M was allocated to SPS; $96.66M for the RCMP and $25.62M for City Police Support 
Services.  SPS’ budget is summarized as follows: 

Page 21 of 31



2 

In addition to the budget for regular SPS operations above, $63.68M has been allocated by the City for the 
policing transition to SPS, presented in the following table (in thousands): 

The available funds for one-time policing transition expenditures during 2021 was $43.72M (including 
carried forward amounts from 2020), of which $28.12M was unspent and carried forward into 2022.  The 
2022 budget allocation for the transition project is $5.40M; a total of $33.52M is available for 2022, 
presented in the Discussion section below.  

The specific timing of SPS becoming the police of jurisdiction is dependent on decisions made by all three 
levels of government, which may affect the timing of expenditures.  

DISCUSSION 

SPS Operations  
As of October 31, 2022, year-to-date net expenditures (operating and capital) were $9.25M favourable 
compared to budget; SPS incurred net expenditures of $52.24M compared to $61.50M budgeted, presented 
in the following table: 

As of October 31,2022, SPS expended $93K for board remuneration, $34.87M for employee salaries and 
benefits, $1.67M of capital expenditures, and $1.77M of other expenditures, and accrued $13.84M of 
contributions to Lower Mainland Integrated Teams.  (Appendix I provides a breakdown of expenditures by 
Bureau.)  

Lower Mainland Integrated Teams (LMIT) are funded by each jurisdiction within the region for their services, 
including: 

• Integrated Homicide Investigation Team (IHIT)
Page 22 of 31



3 

• Emergency Response Team (ERT)
• Integrated Forensic Identification Services (IFIS)
• Integrated Police Dog Services (IPDS)
• Integrated Collision Analysis and Reconstruction Service (ICARS)

The LMIT budget and expenses also include contributions to the Real Time Intelligence Centre (RTIC) and the 
Independent Investigations office (IIO). 

On October 31, 2022, there were a total of 355 active SPS employees (296 sworn members and 59 civilians).  
Of these employees, 29 were assigned to temporary recruitment, security clearance, and various other 
positions required for the policing transition project; their salaries and benefits are currently allocated to the 
One-time Policing Transition Project fund.  

Included in SPS Operations, are salaries and benefits of $34.87M, with 326 employees (286 sworn members 
and 40 civilians) currently active.  These employees are engaged in activities, such as:   

• Community policing
• Community engagement
• Develop and maintain policies and procedures
• Develop and manage training programs, including operational and leadership skills
• Occupational health and safety development and organization
• Procurement (equipment, uniforms, firearms, etc.)
• Staffing coordination and financial planning
• Tri-lateral coordination (human resources, asset transfer, facilities, etc.)

Other expenditures of $1.77M included: $364K for supplies; $580K paid to JIBC for recruits’ training; $171K 
of telecommunication expenses; $115K for training; $381K for outsourced services; $18K for insurance; $15K 
of publications and reference materials; $20K of memberships and professional dues; $102K of travel 
expenses; and $4K for recruiting activities.  

One-Time Policing Transition Project (City of Surrey budget) 

For awareness, the City’s one-time policing transition project expenditures are reported below: 

Appendix II presents the detail on the policing transition project costs, related to establishing SPS, based on 
the latest financial forecast prepared in September 2022.  Year-to-date expenditures as of October 31, 2022, 
totalled $10.87M of the $33.52M available; details of significance are presented below: 

• Recruitment, Assessment, and Training expenses include costs incurred to support the recruiting
surge for SPS, security clearances, testing and assessment of candidates, and training of new hires.
As of October 31, 2022, resources currently assigned to temporary recruitment and security

Page 23 of 31



4 

clearance processing include 16 employees (10 sworn members and 6 civilians); year-to-date 
expenditures totalled $2.25M (82% of the forecasted amount for 2022).  

• Human Resources expenses include personnel in various temporary roles (auxiliary staff) and HR
consultant(s) to support establishing SPS, with 13 civilians and one consultant as of October 31,
2022; year-to-date expenditures totalled $629K (84% of the forecasted amount for 2022).

• Communications and Marketing expenditures include consultants managing public relations and
brand development expenses to support the establishment of SPS; year-to-date expenditures
totalled $174K (80% of the forecasted amount for 2022).

• Financial Services expenses include outsourced financial service consultants and personnel to
support setting up SPS’ finance and payroll systems and databases; year-to-date expenditures
totalled $141K (85% of the forecasted amount for 2022).

• Legal expenditures are specialized legal services, for matters related to collective bargaining, human
resources, trademarks, and other establishment legal costs; also included, is the cost of in-house
counsel seconded from the City.  The year-to-date expenditures totalled $301K (77% of the
forecasted amount for 2022).

• Information Technology Systems and Capital costs include IT operating systems setup, external
consultants for project management, building our technology infrastructure (data centre, dispatch
systems, administrative systems), and the procurement of related assets; year-to-date expenditures
totalled $5.13M (58% of the forecasted amount for 2022).

• Armoury, Outfit, and Other Equipment Capital costs are related to firearms, uniforms, personal issue
kits, and other speciality equipment for policing; year-to-date expenditures totalled $2.22M (63% of
the forecasted amount for 2022).

• Facilities Improvement and Outfitting include retrofit and furniture costs for SPS to occupy facilities
owned or leased by the City of Surrey; year-to-date expenditures totalled $29K (108% of the
forecasted amount for 2022).  The 8% unfavourable variance compared to forecast is related to a
minor cost allocation error; this will be corrected in November.

CONCLUSION 

Expenditures to date, supporting SPS’ operations and the One-time Policing Transition Project, are within 
the available funding for 2022.   

Avtar Johl 
Chair, Finance Committee 

Appendix I Surrey Police Service Year-to-Date Expenditures – October 31, 2022 (Budget vs. Actual) 
Appendix II One-Time Policing Transition Fund – October 31, 2022 

Page 24 of 31



Page 25 of 31



Page 26 of 31



For Police Board information. 

From: Rubina Mondair  

Sent: Wednesday, November 9, 2022 2:39:10 PM 

To: Michael Grandia  

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Remembrance Day Assembly - Ellendale Elementary 

Hi Michael, 

We are so appreciative of you both taking time out of your busy schedule and attending our 

assembly today. Your words and presence truly did brighten up the kids spirts. 

At the end of the day, we always end with our "highlights of the day." Many of them said it was 

you and Constable Chan visiting and answering questions. One of them in particular said it was 

an honour to simply shake your hand. Of course, one of our students was very happy that you 

also watch Brooklyn 99 (a favorite of mine also!) 

Thank you for all your work and dedication to our community. We are always rooting for you at 

Ellendale. Please visit again 🙂 

Have a wonderful day, 

Rubina 

Rubina Mondair 

Ellendale Elementary | Surrey School District 

Page 27 of 31

mailto:mondair_r@surreyschools.ca


2023 BCAPB Conference – May 25 && 26, 2023 – Nelson, BC 

Page 28 of 31



Page 29 of 31



Page 30 of 31



Page 31 of 31


	Agenda - Regular Board 2022 11 30
	Oath - Brenda Locke - Chair
	Letter from City of Surrey to Surrey Police Board - November Council Resolution  Re:  SPS Expenditures
	Minutes - Regular Board 2022 10 26
	R027 - Hiring and Diversity Update
	R028 - SPS Community Policing Vision
	R029 - Community Engagement
	Appendix I - October 2022 Community Connections
	FIN015 - Financial Update - YTD Expenditures (October 31, 2022)
	Appendix I - SPS YTD Expenditures - October 31, 2022 (Budget vs. Actual)
	Appendix II - One-Time Policing Transition Fund - October 31, 2022
	Thank you from Ellendale Elementary - Remembrance Day Assembly
	2023 BCAPB Conference - Save the Date - May 26 & 26, 2023 - Nelson, BC
	Letter from ADM Rideout - Board Training - Watson Advisors



